
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING FEBRUARY 19, 2014   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY FEBRUARY 19, 2014 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
This public comment portion of this agenda provides an opportunity for the public to address the Board of 
Directors on items not listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public at large and are within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of this Board.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from taking action on matters 
discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Board does not 
respond to public comments at this time.  Comments that concern individual customer accounts are welcome, 
however we encourage doing so only after other administrative avenues for redress have been fully exhausted.  
In all cases, your concerns will be referred to the General Manager for review and a timely response.  
 
Comments are to be limited to three minutes per speaker and shall not exceed a total of 20 minutes.  All 
comments are to be directed to the Board of Directors and shall not consist of any personal attacks.  Members 
of the public are expected to maintain a professional, courteous decorum during their comments.  Public input 
may be offered on an agenda item when the item comes up for discussion and/or action.  Members of the 
public who wish to speak shall proceed to the podium when called by the President of the Board.  Please state 
your name and community of residence for the record. 
 

Pg. 1-5 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will 
be adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any 
individual or organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the February 5, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors 
 

Pg. 6-14 7. EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE GENERAL MANAGER 
The Ad Hoc GM Negotiating Committee  recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as 
presented. 
 

Pg. 15 8. DISCUSS OPERATION OF PRIVATE PACKAGE TREATMENT PLANTS 
Information only. 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING FEBRUARY 19, 2014   Page 2 of 2 
 

Pg. 16-24 9. NOMINATION OF JBWD DIRECTOR FOR REGULAR OR ALTERNATE SPECIAL DISTRICT 
MEMBER OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 
Recommend that the Board nominate any JBWD Director who wants to serve on the LAFCO 
Commission. 
 

Pg. 25-27 10. CONSIDER INCREASE TO DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 
Recommend that the Board receive information and provide staff direction. 
 

 11. 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
AD HOC: 

A. ADMINISTRATION CODE UPDATE PROJECT: President  Fuller and Director Luckman 
B. HOSPITAL WASTEWATER PROJECT: Director  Luckman and President  

Fuller 
C. MOJAVE WATER AGENCY INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 

PLAN COMMITTEE: Director Luckman and President Fuller 
D. RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Vice President 

Reynolds 
E. TANK RESTORATION PROJECT: Director Wilson and Director Johnson 

 

 12. STANDING: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Director  Luckman and President Fuller:   

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson 

 
 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may 
not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 15. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 16. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 18. ADJOURNMENT 
 

INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water District at 
(760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on February 26 at 7:00 pm and March 5 at 7:00 pm.   
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office and at the Joshua Tree Library 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

February 5, 2014 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Susan Greer, Acting General Manager 
Marie Salsberry, HR Manager/Administrative Specialist 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Mike Metts, District Engineer, Dudek & Associates 
Justin Schiedel, Dudek & Associates 
David O’Leary, USGS 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 6 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Luckman/Johnson 5/0 to approve the agenda for the February 5, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Board of 

Directors. 
   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  Aye  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Kathleen Radnich, JBWD Public Outreach Consultant, stated the District will host a Water Education Day on 

March 30 along with Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency, Hi-Desert Water District, Mojave Water Agency, 
Twentynine Palms Water District and other local organizations. 

 
6. CLOSED SESSION 
The Board went to closed session at 7:06 pm and the meeting resumed in open session at 7:47 pm. 
 
7. PUBLIC REPORT ON TONIGHT’S CLOSED SESSION 
President Fuller reported that during the closed session the Board discussed appointment of a general manager 

and a roll call vote was taken for the conditional appointment, which will be subject to final action of Board 
approval of Mr. Sauer’s contract as legally required during open session at the next meeting. President Fuller 
stated it had been nine months since the Board appointed Susan Greer as Acting General Manager and Susan 
has been amazing balancing her regular job and the job of General Manager. 



President Fuller reported that, pending the contract and hiring approval at the February 19th Board meeting the 
Board has appointed Curt Sauer as the new general manager. She noted that Mr. Sauer has 30 years’ 
experience managing programs, people and infrastructure; he served as the Joshua Tree National Park 
Superintendent and is a committed member of the Joshua Tree community. She reported the roll call vote for 
the appointment of Mr. Curt Sauer to the position of general manager: 

   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  No  
 
District Legal Counsel Gil Granito reported that the Board has been diligent in adhering to the Brown Act and 

has done a remarkable job. He reported that an employment agreement will be included in the agenda packet 
for the next meeting so that it can be vetted by the public as well as deliberated by the Board. 

Director Wilson commented opposing the choice of appointment for the general manager position. Director 
Luckman stated she was pleased with the appointment. Vice President Reynolds stated he was pleased with 
the decision and looking forward to working with Mr. Sauer.  

 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0 to approve the draft minutes of the January 8, 2014 Special Meeting of the Board 

of Directors; to approve the draft minutes of the January 15, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors; to approve the October 2013 Financial Report Review; and to approve the November 2013 
Financial Report Review. 

   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  Aye  
 
9. UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) STUDY CONTINUATION AT A COST OF 

$143,075 
Acting General Manager Susan Greer reported to the Board, and introduced David O’Leary of United States 

Geological Survey (USGS), who presented information on work done to date and the proposal for continued 
studies.  

MSC Luckman/Johnson 4/1 to approve $143,075 extension to the Joint Funding Agreement with USGS. 
   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  No  
 
10. APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT CONTRACTS FOR WATER RECHARGE FACILITY 

PROJECT AT A TOTAL COST OF $153,043 INCLUDING 10% CONTINGENCY 
District Engineer Mike Metts presented the staff report, describing the construction support services needed for 

the Recharge Facility project.   
MSC Reynolds/Luckman 4/1 to authorize the contracts and costs for the Water Recharge Facility project as 

follows: 1) Dudek in the amount of $54,860 for construction management and inspection; 2) Leighton 



Engineering in the amount of $49,288 for soils and geotechnical consulting; and 3) Diamondback Surveying 
in the amount of $31,400 for construction staking; 4) Circle Mountain in the amount of $3,595 for 
environmental services; and 5) a 10% contingency in the amount of $13,900.  

   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  No  
 
11. APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT CONTRACTS FOR D3 PUMP STATION 

REHABILITATION PROJECT AT A TOTAL COST OF $34,018 INCLUDING 10% CONTINGENCY 
District Engineer Metts reported on services needed in conjunction with the D3 Pump Station Rehabilitation 

project. He recommended that the Board authorize contracts to Dudek in the amount of $13,500 for 
construction management and inspection, Heider Engineering in the amount of $4,918 for soils and 
geotechnical consulting, Rockwell Electric in the amount of $12,500 for electrical inspection, and a 10% 
contingency in the amount of $3,100. 

Director Wilson made a motion to approve the construction support contracts with the exception of Rockwell 
Electric, this portion would be put out to bid for sealed bids opened by the Board. There was no second and 
the motion failed. 

MSC Luckman/Johnson 4/1 to approve the construction support contracts for D3 Pump Station Rehabilitation 
project at a total cost of $34,018 including 10% contingency. 

   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  No  
 
12. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 14-915 AMENDING THE BASIC WATER SERVICE RULES AND 

REGULATIONS 
President Fuller reported that the Ad Hoc Rules and Regulations committee worked with staff and legal counsel 

to update the Rules and Regulations to provide clarity and transparency. AGM Greer reported that the 
proposed updates to Articles 1 and 2 clarify the rules for customers as well as for staff. She stated that 
Director Luckman had noted several typographical errors and correction of these could be included in the 
recommended action for this item.  

Richard Fountain of Joshua Tree commented on several provisions of the Rules and Regulations. President 
Fuller stated no substantial changes were made to the Rules and Regulations; only the language was changed 
to make the document easier to read. 

MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0 to adopt Resolution 14-915 Amending the Basic Water Service Rules and 
Regulations including correction of typographical errors noted by Director Luckman. 

   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  Aye  
 
13. CHANGE FINANCIAL REPORTING FREQUENCY TO QUARTERLY OR AS-NEEDED 
AGM Greer reported on behalf of the Finance Committee that it is the Board’s decision how often to receive 



financial reports. The District’s budget is annual but revenues and expenses do not occur regularly 
throughout the year. Most questions related to financial reports have been about the check register. The 
Committee recommended quarterly financial reporting to the Board. The check audit report would still be 
provided monthly. Director Luckman asked if quarterly financial reports could be tied to the Strategic Plan. 
Discussion ensued. 

MSC Johnson/Reynolds 5/0 to approve quarterly financial reporting frequency or as-needed. 
   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  Aye  
 
14 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
AD HOC COMMITTEES: 
A. GENERAL MANAGER SEARCH: Vice President Reynolds and Director Luckman:  This committee will 

be dissolved. 
B. ADMINISTRATION CODE UPDATE PROJECT: President Fuller and Director Luckman:  This will be 

addressed after updates to the Rules and Regulations are completed. 
C. HOSPITAL WASTEWATER PROJECT: Director Luckman and President Fuller: District Counsel Granito 

reported that a meeting is scheduled for this Friday. 
D. MOJAVE WATER AGENCY INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 

COMMITTEE: Director Luckman and President Fuller: Director Luckman reported the next meeting is 
tomorrow and President Fuller will attend. 

E. RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Vice President Reynolds:  The 
committee will address the next phase. 

F. TANK RESTORATION PROJECT: Director Wilson and Director Johnson: Director Wilson reported that 
nothing will happen until the District has some money.   

 
15. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
16. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
AGM Greer reported the Incode Version 10 upgrade is in process. The Department of Water Resources grant 

has been submitted and is under review. Another solar project is planned, for the area of Terrace and 
Cascade. Pre-construction meetings were held today for the Recharge Project and D3 Pump Station project; 
both projects will begin mid-march. AGM Greer addressed a question Director Wilson asked at the last 
meeting regarding vehicle use; a vehicle use policy is on the list of re-opener items in the current 
Memorandum of Understanding between the District and the general unit; after the current item being 
addressed in Meet and Confer is concluded she will request that the vehicle use policy be discussed next. 
Distribution department employees are no longer driving District vehicles home except when on call. 

She addressed comments that have been overheard in the community that the District is in serious financial 
distress and cannot pay its employees. That is not true; The District has cash flow concerns related to the 
grant; four million dollars have been spent and the grant funding of three million dollars will be coming 
back. Cash reserves are low but lowering the cash reserves was done intentionally. The District has three 
million dollars in reserve and is due three million dollars from grant funding for a total of six million dollars. 
Three million dollars is nearly one year’s operating expense including all payroll for the District, so the 



District is in good financial shape. 
Newly designed water bills will go to customers for the first time next month; the newsletter will include 

information about the changes to the bill.   
 
17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Johnson stated he looks forward to working with Mr. Sauer and welcomed him to the District. Director 

Luckman reported that the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) confirmed her appointment as 
a member of the Groundwater Committee representing Region 9. Vice President Reynolds welcomed Mr. 
Sauer. He reported attending the Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts meeting where the 
speaker was a representative of the San Bernardino County Sheriff Department. President Fuller reported 
attending the Mojave Water Agency meeting where a topic of discussion was the state’s interest in oversight 
of groundwater management.  President Fuller has been appointed to the ACWA Local Legislative 
Committee representing Region 9. She stated she is looking forward to having Mr. Sauer join the District. 

 
18. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
District Counsel Granito reported on a third application for a solar facility; he and AGM Greer will prepare a 

response to express concerns about water issues. 
 
19. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Welcome for the new general manager once hired. 
 
20. ADJOURNMENT   9:13 PM 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0  to adjourn the February 5, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
   Fuller  Aye  
   Johnson Aye  
   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye  
   Wilson  Aye  
 
 
 Respectfully submitted:  

 
 
_________________________________ 
Susan Greer, Acting General Manager 

  
 



 

 
February 19, 2014 
 
 
 
The attached Employment Agreement for the General Manager has been developed by the Ad 
Hoc GM Negotiating Committee (Fuller/Johnson) with input and guidance from the Board. 
 
 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
The Committee recommends approval of the Employment Agreement as presented. 
 
 



 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
AND 

CURTIS L. SAUER 
 
 
 This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of 
February 19, 2014, by and between Joshua Basin Water District (hereinafter “District”) 
and Curtis L. Sauer (hereinafter “Sauer”). 
 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
 
 A. WHEREAS, the District is a county water district organized and 
operating pursuant to Division 12 of the California Water Code; and 
 
 B. WHEREAS, the District, through its Board of Directors (sometimes 
referred to herein as “Board”), wishes to engage the services of Sauer as the District’s 
General Manager; and 
 
 C. WHEREAS, Sauer affirms that he has read the functions, responsibilities, 
and duties of the General Manager position set forth in Exhibit “A” attached to this 
Agreement and represents that he is qualified to perform such services;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 
 Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are 
hereby made a part of this Agreement and are incorporated herein as though set forth in 
full by this reference. 
 
 Section 2. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement 
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.   
 
 Section 3. Employment.  The District hereby employs Sauer, who accepts 
such employment, to serve as the District’s General Manager. 
 
 Section 4. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
effective date of this Agreement and continue to March 31, 2018, unless otherwise 
terminated as provided for in Section 5 of this Agreement. 



 Section 5. Termination. 
 

A. It is expressly understood that Sauer, in his capacity as District 
General Manager, is an at-will employee serving at the pleasure of the Board, subject to 
termination by the Board at any time with or without cause.  Nevertheless, the District’s 
Board of Directors shall not exercise its right of termination during any ninety (90) day 
period following a General District Election unless termination is for “cause” as defined 
in Section 8.5 of this Agreement. 
 

B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere 
with the right of Sauer and the District to voluntarily terminate this Agreement. 
 

C. Due to the significance of the General Manager position and the 
difficulty of finding a replacement for said position, Sauer shall give the Board at least 
thirty (30) days written notice of his resignation. 
 

Section 6. Duties. 
 
  A. Sauer shall perform the functions and duties specified in Exhibit 
“A,” and such other duties and functions as shall, from time to time, be assigned by the 
Board, or be required by law. 
 
  B. Sauer will devote his full time and best efforts to performing his 
duties and to the District’s business affairs.   
 
  C. Sauer may devote an appropriate amount of time to water district 
associations and meetings that support the District so long as the time devoted to these 
activities does not interfere with the performance of his duties to the District.  
Participation at these professional, organizational activities will be subject to the review 
and approval of the District’s Board of Directors. 
 
 Section 7. Compensation. 
 
  A. Annual Base Salary.  Sauer shall be paid an annual salary of 
$128,000.00.  Said compensation shall be paid in equal bi-weekly payments. 
 
  B. Performance Review, Merit Adjustment.  The Board will 
conduct a review of Sauer’s performance after Sauer’s first six (6) months of service and 
consider making a reasonable adjustment to Sauer’s annual base salary as the Board may 
deem appropriate in accordance with said evaluation.  Thereafter, on or about March 5, 
2015, and every year thereafter, on or about March 5th, the Board will evaluate Sauer’s 
performance and other relevant factors and shall consider making reasonable adjustments 
to Sauer’s annual base salary, as the Board may deem appropriate, in accordance with 
such evaluation.  The Board shall meet and confer with Sauer in regard to such evaluation 
and the conclusions to be reached therefrom.  However, it is understood that the District 
and its Board of Directors makes no commitment to increase or otherwise adjust Sauer’s 
salary at any particular time or on any regular basis.  In addition to the above, the 



District’s Board of Directors may, at its discretion, evaluate Sauer’s performance at more 
frequent intervals as it deems appropriate. 
  C. Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA).  Sauer will be entitled to 
and receive cost of living salary increases at the same rate and at the same time as regular 
full-time management employees of the District that are approved by the District’s Board 
of Directors. 
 

 D. Overtime Pay.  As an exempt managerial employee, under no 
circumstances will Sauer be entitled to any overtime pay regardless of the number of 
hours he may work in any work week. 
 

 E. Benefits.  Sauer will be entitled to and receive the following 
benefits. 
 

(i) Participation in the District’s Cafeteria Plan, which terms 
and conditions are as follows:  The District shall contribute 
$900 per month to be used for purchase of Sauer’s health, 
dental, vision and related insurance benefits.  From the 
monthly benefit, the District shall deduct the “employee 
only” mandatory premiums for the District’s dental and 
vision insurance coverage.  The balance of the monthly 
benefit shall be applied toward the employee’s (Sauer’s)  
health insurance premium either provided by the District’s 
health insurance or the employee’s (Sauer’s) alternate 
health insurance coverage.  The employee (Sauer) must 
provide proof of the existence of such alternate health 
insurance yearly, and must sign a written notice of 
declination yearly indicating that the employee (Sauer) is 
declining the District’s health insurance coverage and that 
the employee (Sauer) has alternate health insurance 
coverage.  Any remaining balance of the monthly benefit 
may be used by the employee (Sauer) to purchase other 
optional District insurance benefits such as dependent 
health, dental or vision insurance, additional life insurance 
or deferred compensation.  Any cost for additional benefits 
in excess of the monthly benefit is the responsibility of the 
employee (Sauer).  Any balance of the monthly benefit 
remaining after the purchase of the mandatory and optional 
insurance benefits will be paid to Sauer as a taxable cash 
payout. 

 
(ii) Vacation, sick, administrative, bereavement leave, paid 

holidays and other leave equal to and on the same terms 
and conditions as that which is provided to all other full-
time management employees of  the District, except that 
Sauer shall be entitled to twenty (20) working days of 
vacation time per year, to be accrued starting in the course 



of Sauer’s initial year of employment and every year 
thereafter at the rate of twenty (20) working days per year. 

 
(iii) District shall reimburse Sauer at the prevailing IRS 

standard rate (which is currently  56¢ per mile)  for any 
District business use of his personal vehicle.  Sauer shall be 
responsible for paying for liability, property damage, and 
comprehensive insurance coverage upon such vehicle and 
shall further be responsible for all expenses pertaining to 
the purchase, operation, maintenance, repair, and regular 
replacement of said vehicle beyond that subject to 
reimbursement. 

 
   (iv) Sauer will be entitled to the same (a) Deferred  
    Compensation Programs, (b) Educational Assistance  
 Programs, and (c) Retirement Programs/Benefits, which are 

provided to all other full-time management employees of  
the District.   

 
(v) Sauer shall be provided, at District expense, a District cell 

phone and lap top to be used for District business, water 
association conferences and meetings. 

 
  F. Business Expenses.  Sauer will be reimbursed for documented and 
reasonable business expenses in connection with the performance of his duties under this 
Agreement and in accordance with the District’s general policies on business expenses. 

 
Section 8. Severance Pay.   
 
 8.1 In the event Sauer elects to terminate this Agreement, he shall not 
be entitled to severance pay. 
 
 8.2 In the event Sauer’s employment is terminated by the District at 
any time without cause, he will be entitled to severance pay equal to the lesser of 
(a) his monthly salary multiplied by 2 or (b) his monthly salary multiplied by the 
number of months left on the unexpired term of this Agreement (See Government 
Code Section 53260.) 
 
 8.3 The severance pay provisions provided for in Section 8.2 above 
shall be paid in equal monthly installments. 
 
 8.4 In the event Sauer’s employment is terminated by the District for 
cause, he will not be entitled to severance pay. 
 
 8.5 Definition of Cause.  “Cause” means the occurrence or existence 
of any of the following with respect to Sauer as reasonably and in good faith 
determined by the Board:  (a) acts in bad faith and to the detriment of the District; 
(b) exhibits in regard to his employment unfitness for service, misconduct, 



dishonesty, or incompetence; or (c) breaches of any material term of this 
Agreement. 
 

 Section 9. Reimbursement to District.   
 
 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if Sauer is convicted 
of a crime involving an abuse of his office or position, Sauer shall fully reimburse the 
District as follows: 
 
  A. For any paid leave salary provided by the District pending an 
investigation.  See Government Code Section 53243. 
 
  B. For any funds provided by the District for the legal criminal 
defense of Sauer.  See Government Code Section 53243.1. 
 
  C. For any cash settlement provided by the District related to the 
termination of Sauer’s employment.  See Government Code Section 53243.2. 
 
  D. For purposes of this Section 8, “abuse of office or position” means 
either of the following: 
 

(i) An abuse of public authority, including, but not limited to, 
waste, fraud, and violation of the law under color of 
authority.  See Government Code Section 53243.4(a). 

 
(ii) A crime against public justice, including, but not limited to, 

a crime described in Title 7 (commencing with Section 92) 
of Part 1 of the Penal Code.  See Government Code Section 
53243.4(b). 

 
Section 10. Successors and Assigns.  The terms and conditions of this 

Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the District’s successor 
agency or entity as the case may be. 

 
Section 11. Modifications.  Modifications of this Agreement may only be 

made by formal written amendment approved and executed by both parties. 
 
Section 12. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect without being impaired or 
invalidated in any way. 
 
 Section 13. Construction.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strongly against either party regardless of which party prepared it. 
 
 Section 14. California Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of California.  Proper venue for any litigation concerning this 
Agreement shall be in San Bernardino County. 



 
 Section 15. Notices. 
 
  Notice pursuant to this Agreement shall be given by depositing in the 
custody of the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
  (1) DISTRICT: President, Joshua Basin Water District,  
     61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, CA  92252 
  
  (2) SAUER: Curt Sauer,    
     HCR 1  Box 1182 
     Joshua Tree, CA  92252 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by 
the Parties, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT: 

 
 
 
By ________________________________   

Victoria Fuller, President 
Board of Directors 
 
 

By ________________________________   
Michael P. Reynolds, Vice President 
Board of Directors 
 

 
 
CURTIS L. SAUER: 
 

 
___________________________________   

Curtis L. Sauer 
































	Emp Agmt with Curt Sauer clean 021214.pdf
	EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
	CURTIS L. SAUER
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT




